
There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Philippa Turvey on 01733 452460 as soon as possible.

AB
PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 3 FEBRUARY 2015
1.30 PM

Bourges/Viersen Rooms - Town Hall

AGENDA
Page No

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of Interest

At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council. 
Members must also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in 
relation to any items under consideration.

3. Members' Declaration of intention to make representations as Ward 
Councillor

4. Minutes of the Meeting Held on 6 January 2015 3 - 8

5. Development Control and Enforcement Matters

5.1 14/01393/FUL - Unit B, Vision House, Fengate, Peterborough 9 - 16

5.2 14/02110/FUL - 83 Thorpe Road, Peterborough, PE3 6JQ 17 - 26

5.3 14/02166/OUT - Land to the South of Constantine Drive, 
Stanground South, Peterborough

27 - 50

Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours

In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.

Public Document Pack



Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, take photographs and use 
social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that is open to the public. A protocol on this facility is 
available at: 

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recordi
ng.pdf

Committee Members:

Councillors: C Harper (Chairman), L Serluca (Vice Chairman), G Casey, P Hiller, N North, 
J Stokes, Sylvester, S Martin, D Harrington and C Ash

Substitutes: Councillors: B Rush, N Shabbir and B Saltmarsh

Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Philippa Turvey on telephone 01733 
452460 or by email – philippa.turvey@peterborough.gov.uk

CASE OFFICERS:

Planning and Development Team: Nicholas Harding, Lee Collins, Andrew Cundy, Paul Smith, 
Mike Roberts, Louise Lewis, Janet Maclennan, Astrid 
Hawley, David Jolley, Louise Lovegrove, Vicky Hurrell, 
Amanda McSherry, Sam Falco, Matt Thomson, Chris 
Edwards, Michael Freeman

Minerals and Waste: Theresa Nicholl, Alan Jones

Compliance: Nigel Barnes, Anthony Whittle, Karen Cole, Julie Robshaw

NOTES:

1. Any queries on completeness or accuracy of reports should be raised with the Case Officer 
or Head of Planning, Transport and Engineering Services as soon as possible.

2. The purpose of location plans is to assist Members in identifying the location of the site.  
Location plans may not be up-to-date, and may not always show the proposed development.  

3. These reports take into account the Council's equal opportunities policy but have no 
implications for that policy, except where expressly stated.

4. The background papers for planning applications are the application file plus any documents 
specifically referred to in the report itself.

5. These reports may be updated orally at the meeting if additional relevant information is 
received after their preparation.

http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording.pdf
http://democracy.peterborough.gov.uk/documents/s21850/Protocol%20on%20the%20use%20of%20Recording.pdf


AB
    MINUTES OF THE PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION COMMITTEE 

HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, PETERBOROUGH ON 6 JANUARY 2015

Members Present: Councillors Harper (Chair), Serluca (Vice-Chair) Casey, Hiller, North, 
Stokes, Martin, Ash and Harrington

Officers Present:  Lee Collins, Development Management Manager
Amanda McSherry, Principal Development Management Officer
Julie, Robshaw, Compliance Officer
Simon Ireland, Principal Engineer (Highway Control)
Hannah Vincent, Planning and Highways Lawyer
Pippa Turvey, Senior Democratic Services Officer

1. Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Sylvester.

2. Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

3.    Members’ Declaration of intention to make representations as Ward Councillor

There were no declarations of intention to make representations as Ward Councillor.

4. Minutes of the Meetings held on:

4.1 18 November 2014

The minutes of the meeting held on 18 November 2014 were approved as a correct 
record.

4.2 2 December 2014

The minutes of the meeting held on 2 December 2014 were approved as a correct 
record.

5.    Development Control and Enforcement Matters

5.1 14/01759/HHFUL – 8 Engaine, Orton Longueville, Peterborough, PE2 7QA

The planning application was for a garage extension at 8 Engaine, Orton Longueville.

The main considerations were:
 The impact of the proposal on the character of the area
 The impact of the proposal on the amenity of the occupiers of neighbouring 

dwellings
 Other matters

3



It was officer’s recommendation that planning permission be refused, for the reasons set 
out in the report.

The Principal Development Management Officer provided an overview of the application 
and raised the following key points:

 The proposal was for a double garage, 6.6 metres by 6.1 metres and constituted 
a reduction from initial proposals.

 The garage would sit 3 metres in from the site boundary.
 Objections had been received on the grounds of height, impact on the street 

scene, character of the area, positioning and flooding. Additional concerns had 
been raised about the lack of permeable hardstanding within the proposal.

 It was considered that the roof of the garage would be prominent and very 
visible.

 The garage would be remote, unlike the surrounding developments.
 It was considered that the proposals were unacceptably dominant and were 

visually detrimental.

Paul Sharman, Agent, addressed the Committee in support of the application and 
responded to questions from Members. In summary the key points highlighted included:

 It was suggested that officers had been over zealous in their consideration of the 
application.

 The proposal would not have any impact of neighbour amenity. 
 The location of the garage was not too noticeable and it was not considered to 

be situated on a prominent corner. 
 The size of the garage was normal. It was stated that two garages in the nearby 

vicinity were of greater height than that proposed, two where the same height 
and five was smaller.

 It was believed that the garage related well to the dwelling in its proposed 
position. It was suggested that moving the garage further into the site by six 
metres would create an area of unusable land. 

 The height of the garage was required for storage use.
 Measures would be put in place to ensure that the site drained properly and any 

flood issues were avoided. 

The Committee discussed the application, suggesting that the proposal would not look 
out of place with the surrounding area. The size of the garage would have an impact on 
the street scene, but not so much as to be considered unacceptable. Several Committee 
members stated that moving the garage further into the site would look incongruous and 
create space not easily usable. It was noted that concerns from residents in relation to 
flooding should be regarded and appropriate conditions should be imposed if approved. 

The Principal Development Management Officer advised that officers had considered 
the proposal to be too high and isolated from the dwelling, resulting in an appearance 
very prominent in the street. It was advised that the site had an extant consent for a 
double garage, measuring 4.8 metres in height, positioned in the top left hand corner of 
the site. If the Committee were minded to approve the application conditions could be 
included in relation to drainage, conditions for building materials, and conditions to retain 
the development as parking and not an independent residential use.

A motion was proposed and seconded to agree that permission be granted, contrary to 
officer recommendation, subject to conditions relating to permeable materials for 
hardstanding, building materials and retention of use for parking for the dwelling and not 
for an independent residential use. The motion was carried by seven votes, one voting 
against.

4



RESOLVED: (seven voted in favour, two voted against) that planning permission is 
GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1. Details of  materials for hardstanding and a suitable surface water drainage 
scheme if material not permeable;

2. Building materials; and
3. Retention of use for parking for the dwelling, and not any independent 

residential use.

Reasons for the decision

While the proposed garage would have an impact on the street scene, this impact would 
not be unacceptable and would not be to the detriment of the character of the area.

5.2 14/02039/HHFUL – 40 Farleigh Fields, Orton Wistow, Peterborough, PE2 6YB

The planning application was a retrospective application for a single storey extension to 
the rear of 40 Farleigh Fields, Orton Wistow.

The main consideration was:
 The impact of the proposal on the amenity of the occupiers of the neighbouring 

dwellings

It was officer’s recommendation that planning permission be refused, for the reasons set 
out in the report.

The Development Management Manager provided an overview of the application and 
raised the following key points:

 An extension had previously existed on the site, which had been 3.5 metres 
deep. The current retrospective application was for a development of 7.3 metres 
deep, with a 4.15 metre pitched roof. 

 No objections had been received from neighbours or the Parish Council.
 The applicant had prior approval for a development in the same location of 6.2 

metres by 3.8 metres. The proposal was 1.1 metres deeper and 0.3 metres 
higher.

 It was considered that this increase resulted in significant additional impact on 
neighbour amenity, as this was the only aspect to receive direct sunlight. The 
outlook from and the overshadowing of the neighbouring property was 
unacceptable. 

 Additional information from the agent and applicant, and photos from the 
neighbouring property had been received within the update report. The 
recommendation of officers had not, however, changed.

Councillor Elsey, Ward Councillor, addressed the Committee and responded to 
questions from Members. In summary the key points highlighted included:

 Highlighted the importance of the planning system weighting applications against 
neighbour amenity.

 The applicants disregard for these rules had caused the resident of the 
neighbouring property significant stress.

 The development extended the full depth of the garden and had a harmful 
impact on residential amenity. 

 The development compounded issues of overshadowing and dominated the 
area. 

5



 The loss of light to the neighbouring property was made significantly worse by 
the proposal.  

 It was confirmed that, although no written objection had been received, the 
resident of the neighbouring property did object. Members of the Parish Council 
were minded of the impact the proposal had, but had made no further comment.

Stuart Cleworth, Applicant, addressed the Committee in support of the application and 
responded to questions from Members. In summary the key points highlighted included:

 Mr Cleworth apologised for his misunderstanding of the prior approval process. 
He had believed a single storey extension would be supported and not 
considered harmful.

 The previous extension’s flat roof had not been in keeping with the character of 
the area, and the reduction in eve height was considered to be an improvement.

 It was suggested that the gardens of the neighbouring properties would only 
receive direct sunlight for one hour a day, so this loss was not significant.

 The density of the tree belt already blocked out a substantial amount of sunlight, 
more so than the proposal.

 It was noted that the applicant could increase the height of his fence to two 
metres without the need for planning permission. 

 Attempts had been made to engage neighbours, however had been 
unsuccessful. Before today Mr Cleworth had believed there to be no objections. 

The Development Management Manager clarified that within the prior approval process 
an extension of up to 8 metres could be erected, as long as there were no objections 
from neighbours. The applicant had followed this process with a prior approval notice 
application for an extension of 6.2 metres. An objection was received from a neighbour, 
however it had been considered by officers that a 6.2 metre extension would not be 
harmful and prior approval was granted. The applicant had proceeded to erect an 
extension of 7.3 metres, beyond what had been approved. The Committee were advised 
that the prior approval requirements were not applicable to retrospective applications, as 
such, the lack of neighbour objection to the current application was not relevant. 

The Committee appreciated that the applicant may have been confused by the prior 
approval process, however considered the proposal dominated the garden and had 
extensive impact on neighbour amenity. 

A motion was proposed and seconded to agree that permission be refused, as per 
officer recommendation. The motion was carried by eight votes, one voting against.

RESOLVED: (eight voted for, one voted against) that planning permission is REFUSED 
for the reason given below.

Reasons for the decision

The proposal was unacceptable having been assessed in light of all material 
considerations, including weighing against relevant policies of the development plan and 
for the specific reason:

The extension, by way of its height, depth and location and given the orientation of the 
dwellings, would result in an unacceptable level of overshadowing and enclosure for the 
neighbour 39 Farleigh Fields, to the detriment of their amenity. This is contrary to policy 
CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy (DPD) and policy PP3 of the Peterborough 
Planning Policies (DPD) 2012 which state;

6



CS16 - New development should not result in unacceptable impact upon the amenity of 
the occupiers of neighbouring dwellings. 

PP3 - Planning permission will not be granted for development which would result in; (d) 
loss of light to and/or overshadowing of any nearby property; or (e) overbearing impact 
on any nearby neighbour.

5.3 Exclusion of the Press and Public

RESOLVED: that agenda item 5.3 - Enforcement Action in West Ward, which contained 
exempt information likely to identify an individual or company where prosecution was 
being considered, as defined by Paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 of Schedule 12A of Part 1 of the 
Local Government Act 1972, should be exempt and the press and public excluded from 
the meeting when this item was discussed and that the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighed the public interest in disclosing this information.

5.4 Enforcement Action in West Ward

As agreed the meeting moved into exempt session.

The Committee was asked to consider enforcement action in relation to development 
that had not taken place in accordance with approved plans, under Part 3 Section 
2.5.4.3 of the Constitution.

It was officer’s recommendation that no enforcement action be taken. The Compliance 
Officer provided an overview of the report.

A motion was proposed and seconded to agree that no enforcement action be taken, as 
per officer recommendation. The motion was carried unanimously.

RESOLVED: (unanimous) that no enforcement action be taken.

Chairman
1.30pm – 2.40pm

7



This page is intentionally left blank

8



9



This page is intentionally left blank

10



 1 

Planning and EP Committee 3 February 2015                                                               Item 1 
 
Application Ref: 14/01393/FUL  
 
Proposal: Proposed car parking 
 
Site: Unit B, Vision House, Fengate, Peterborough 
Applicant: Mr M Asghar 
  
Agent: Mr Robert Gooding 
 GOOD-DESIGN-ING LTD 
Referred by: Director of Growth and Regeneration 
Reason: The proposal is contrary to Planning Policy to due Highway Safety 
Site visit: 08.12.2014 
 
Case officer: Mrs J MacLennan 
Telephone No. 01733 454438 
E-Mail: janet.maclennan@peterborough.gov.uk 
 
Recommendation:  TO BE PROVIDED IN UPDATE REPORT TO FOLLOW   
 

 
1 Description of the site and surroundings and Summary of the proposal 
 
Site and Surroundings: 
The existing site is a commercial site, with Showroom facilities and is located on the north side of 
Fengate, directly opposite Second Drove and within the Fengate Employment Area.  The immediate 
area is predominantly industrial in character however there are residential units approximately 130m 
to the west and Fengate Mobile Home Park directly opposite the site to the south east.  To the front 
of the site is a grassed area and to the east of the site is a driveway, although there is no formal 
access off Fengate and no dropped kerb.  The site currently has no on-site parking or vehicular 
access for visitors or staff as a consequence of selling off previous associated land and building 
without retaining access rights. 
 
Proposal: 
The application seeks approval for a vehicular access from Fengate and the provision of 7 no. 
parking spaces to the site frontage. 
 
2 Planning History 
 
Reference Proposal Decision Date 
10/00764/FUL Formation of a new vehicular access, new 

parking area and repositioning of main 
entrance doors 

Refused  29/10/2010 

06/00874/FUL Change of use to MOT testing station and 
autoservice repairs (retrospective) 

Permitted  16/08/2006 

09/00163/FUL Change of use to MOT servicing garage, 
Body work repairs and car sales to front of 
site (Retrospective) 

Permitted  09/10/2009 

 
 
3 Planning Policy 
 
Decisions must be taken in accordance with the development plan policies below, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
 

11



 2 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2012) 
 
Section 1 - Economic Growth  
Planning should encourage sustainable growth and significant weight should be given to supporting 
economic development. 
 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) 
 
CS14 - Transport  
Promotes a reduction in the need to travel, sustainable transport, the Council’s UK Environment 
Capital aspirations and development which would improve the quality of environments for residents. 
 
CS16 - Urban Design and the Public Realm  
Design should be of high quality, appropriate to the site and area, improve the public realm, address 
vulnerability to crime, be accessible to all users and not result in any unacceptable impact upon the 
amenities of neighbouring residents. 
 
CS22 - Flood Risk  
Development in Flood Zones 2 and 3 will only be permitted if specific criteria are met. Sustainable 
drainage systems should be used where appropriate. 
 
 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012) 
 
PP12 - The Transport Implications of Development  
Permission will only be granted if appropriate provision has been made for safe access by all user 
groups and there would not be any unacceptable impact on the transportation network including 
highway safety. 
 
PP13 - Parking Standards  
Permission will only be granted if appropriate parking provision for all modes of transport is made in 
accordance with standards. 
 
 
4 Consultations/Representations 
 
Environment Agency - No objections 
 
PCC Transport & Engineering Services - Objects - Whilst visibility splays are shown on the 
drawings a site inspection suggest that the required vehicle to vehicle visibility splays of the road 
which is 30 mph is unlikely to be achieved within the site boundary or public highway.  Potentially 
vehicle to pedestrian visibility splays could be provided.  A former application 10/00764/FUL was 
refused for a number of highway reasons including lack of vehicle to vehicle visibility splays.  A 
further site inspection is to be undertaken and the results of this will be given in the update report. 
 
Local Residents/Interested Parties  
 
Initial consultations: 4 
Total number of responses: 1 
Total number of objections: 1 
Total number in support: 0 
 
1 objection has been raised by a neighbouring occupier stating: 
There is no access to rear and that the land marked on the boundary plan is not the property of the 
vendor.  There is no access to the front as it is opposite Second Drove junction.  The vendor 
submitted an application 4 years ago for an access opposite Second Drove which was refused due 
the Second Drove junction being too dangerous. – This issue is currently being investigated to 

12



 3 

ensure the correct certificate has been completed and where necessary, notice has been served. 
 
Comments have been received from The Insolvency Service, Cambridge stating: 
On 20 October 2014 a winding up order was made against Vision Home Design (Cambs) Limited 
with the registered and trading address being Unit B Vision House, Fengate, Peterborough PE1 5PE.   
I was also told the owner of the property was a Sabir Hussain and not the applicant M Asghar who 
appears to be some relation to the director of Vision Home Design (Cambs) Limited who is a Mrs F 
Ashgar.  Whilst the site address is Vision Home Design Limited and not Vision Home Design 
(Cambs) Limited I have concerns that this is the same company and if it is the company has been 
wound up by the court and should not and cannot make an application for planning permission.  
 
 
5 Assessment of the planning issues 
 
a) Background 
The application site was formerly part of a Builders Merchants with one large industrial unit and yard 
to the rear of the site. In 2006 an application was submitted for a change of use to MOT testing 
station and Autoservice repairs (retrospective) (06/00874/FUL).  The application site included only 
the western part of the industrial unit (Unit A), the access to the site and land to the rear for parking.  
Temporary planning permission was granted for one year to enable the Local Planning Authority to 
assess the impact of the use on neighbouring amenity.  In 2009 a further application was approved 
for Unit A for a change of use to MOT servicing garage, Body work repairs and Car Sales to the front 
of site (09/00163/FUL).   
 
It would appear that Unit A has been sold off leaving Unit B, the application site, with no independent 
access.  Unit B has been operating as a Windows and Conservatory Company at least since 2010 
and it appears that an unauthorised access has been used.  At that time a planning application was 
submitted for a formation of a new vehicular access, new parking area (10/00764/FUL).  The 
application proposed the creation of 4 no. parking spaces with a new access to be created at the far 
western side of the site.  The application was refused on highway grounds due to insufficient width 
of access, inadequate size of parking spaces and inadequate vehicle to vehicle and vehicle to 
pedestrian visibility splays. 
 
b) Highway Implications 
The proposal, the subject of this application, would provide a new access central to the site with 7 
no parking spaces including one disabled parking space.  The Local Highways Authority has 
assessed the proposal and is concerned that the visibility splays available appear to fall short of what 
is required.  Fengate is a 30mph road which requires vehicle to vehicle visibility splays of 2.4m x 
47m.  Revised plans have been submitted indicating the required visibility splays on the drawings. 
However the OS base mapping looks not to be accurate, as a site inspection suggests the actual 
available splays are shorter.  A further site inspection is to be undertaken, the results of which will 
be reported to committee in the update report. 
 
Loss of Employment Use 
Members will be aware that the site lies within the Eastern Employment Area and the NPPF 
encourages the support of sustainable economic growth and employment use.  It is acknowledged 
that the access would be substandard, however, it is unlikely that the unit would be marketable 
without being served by a vehicular access with some parking.  It is accepted that this should have 
been considered when the other half of the site, which included the access, was sold off, however 
the current situation is likely to leave a redundant industrial building.   
 
Conversely the site could continue to operate without a vehicular access and parking provision which 
could ultimately result in delivery vehicles and customers parking unsafely along Fengate.  It should 
also be noted that there are a number of existing businesses within the vicinity which also have 
access points which would not meet current highway standards and indeed it is likely that the 
driveway to the east of the site is used by vehicles albeit without a formal vehicular crossing.   The 
vehicle to vehicle visibility splay is inadequate to the east of the site and for vehicles turning right 

13



 4 

when exiting the site.  
   
In light of the above Members need to give consideration to the proposal on this basis and balance 
the risk of highway safety (the proposal as is stands is contrary to policy PP12 of the Adopted 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD which seeks that development does not result in an 
unacceptable impact on highway safety) against the possible loss of employment use.   
 
c) Visual Amenity 
It is not considered that the creation of an access and provision of parking to the site frontage would 
detract from the character and visual amenity of the area. 
 
d) Flood Risk 
The far southern point of the site is located within flood zone 2 as defined on the Environment 
Agency’s Flood Maps.  A Flood Risk Assessment has been submitted with the proposal.  The EA 
have been consulted and raise no objections to the proposal. The proposal is less vulnerable 
development and it is considered with appropriate surface water management and attenuation 
measures on site that the proposal would not present further flood risk to neighbouring occupiers.  
The proposal therefore accords with policy CS22 of the Adopted Peterborough Core Strategy DPD. 
 
 
6 Conclusions 
 
Due to the need for further highway assessment the conclusions and recommendations will be set 
out in the update report. 
 
7 Recommendation 
 
To follow in the update report. 

14



APPENDIX A

15



This page is intentionally left blank

16



17



This page is intentionally left blank

18



 1 

Planning and EP Committee 3 February 2015                                                                Item 2 
 
Application Ref: 14/02110/FUL  
 
Proposal: Retain existing 15m high temporary mast supporting 3no. antennas, 

temporary radio equipment housing and development ancillary thereto 
including temporary fenced compound for 12 months 

 
Site: 83 Thorpe Road, Peterborough, PE3 6JQ 
 
Applicant: EE Ltd And Hutchison 3G Ltd 
Agent: Ms Jenny Bye, Waldon Telecom Ltd 
 
Referred by: Director of Growth and Regeneration and Councillor Fitzgerald 
Reason: In response to the level of public objection  
Site visit: 30.12.2014 
 
Case officer: Mr S Falco 
Telephone No. 01733 454408 
E-Mail: sam.falco@peterborough.gov.uk 
 
Recommendation: GRANT subject to relevant conditions   
 

 
1 Description of the site and surroundings and Summary of the proposal 
 
Site and Surroundings 
The application site comprises the Thorpe Lodge Hotel located to the southern side of Thorpe 
Road, one of the principal routes into the City Centre.  To the rear of the hotel is a large area of 
hardstanding which acts as a car park for staff and patrons, bound along the southern boundary by 
a 1.8 metre high close boarded fencing (in part) with mature trees beyond.   
 
The surrounding area is predominantly residential with residential apartments located in Ashfields 
sited to the east and south-east, and dwellings on Fairmead Way to the south.   
 
Proposal 
The mast subject to this application was erected on 24th March 2014 following the requirement to 
remove a permanent macro cell (large-scale coverage cell) on top of the now redundant 
Peterborough District Hospital Roof.  On 17th April 2014, the Local Planning Authority sent 
confirmation to the Applicant that the erection of the mast was deemed to be an 'emergency' and 
as such, the mast did not require planning permission to be in situ for a period of 6 months.  This 
expired on 24th September 2014.  
 
The Applicant submitted an earlier application (reference 14/01644/FUL) on 11th September 2014 
to allow for the mast to be retained on site for a period of 12 months.  This was withdrawn owing to 
the requirement to produce a noise assessment.   
 
The current application represents a re-submission of this above application and seeks to extend 
the time period for the retention of the temporary mast to 24th September 2015. 
 

19



 2 

2 Planning History 
 
Reference Proposal Decision Date 
10/01335/NDMTEL Installation of 8m high replica flagpole and 

two equipment cabinets 
Approved 
(appeal) 

11/10/2010 

14/00609/PDNOT Installation of 15m temporary mast Comments  17/04/2014 
14/01037/PDNOT Installation of electronic communications 

apparatus 
Comments  17/06/2014 

14/01644/FUL Retain existing 15m high temporary mast 
supporting 3no. antennas, temporary radio 
equipment housing and development 
ancillary thereto including temporary fenced 
compound for a period of twelve months 

Withdrawn  04/11/2014 

 
 
3 Planning Policy 
 
Decisions must be taken in accordance with the development plan policies below, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (2012) 
 
Section 5 - Telecommunications Development  
The number of masts should be minimised.  Existing structures should be used where possible. If 
new sites are required, equipment should be sympathetically designed and camouflaged.  
Evidence should be provided to demonstrate that there would be no significant/irremediable 
interference with other electrical equipment, etc; Applications must be determined on planning 
grounds and should not seek to prevent competition, question the need for the equipment, or 
consider health safeguards if the International Commission Guidelines for public exposure are met. 
 
 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) 
 
CS14 - Transport  
Promotes a reduction in the need to travel, sustainable transport, the Council’s UK Environment 
Capital aspirations and development which would improve the quality of environments for 
residents. 
 
CS16 - Urban Design and the Public Realm  
Design should be of high quality, appropriate to the site and area, improve the public realm, 
address vulnerability to crime, be accessible to all users and not result in any unacceptable impact 
upon the amenities of neighbouring residents. 
 
 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012) 
 
PP02 - Design Quality  
Permission will only be granted for development which makes a positive contribution to the built 
and natural environment; does not have a detrimental effect on the character of the area; is 
sufficiently robust to withstand/adapt to climate change; and is designed for longevity. 
 
PP03 - Impacts of New Development  
Permission will not be granted for development which would result in an unacceptable loss of 
privacy, public and/or private green space or natural daylight; be overbearing or cause noise or 
other disturbance, odour or other pollution; fail to minimise opportunities for crime and disorder. 
 

20



 3 

PP12 - The Transport Implications of Development  
Permission will only be granted if appropriate provision has been made for safe access by all user 
groups and there would not be any unacceptable impact on the transportation network including 
highway safety. 
 
PP16 - The Landscaping and Biodiversity Implications of Development  
Permission will only be granted for development which makes provision for the retention of trees 
and natural features which contribute significantly to the local landscape or biodiversity. 
 
4 Consultations/Representations 
 
Nene Valley Nature Improvement Area (NIA)  
No comments received. 
 
PCC Pollution Team (22.12.14) 
No objection – The previous noise complaint issues appear to have been resolved and my visit 
concurs with the conclusions of the submitted Noise Assessment (that the fan does not exceed 
background levels).  Request a condition limiting noise levels to no more than 5dB above 
background levels.   
 
Local Residents/Interested Parties  
 
Initial consultations: 18 
Total number of responses: 5 
Total number of objections: 5 
Total number in support: 0 
 
Three letters of objection have been received from local residents on the following grounds: 

− The mast appeared on 25th March 2014 and initially there was a generator attached to it 
making very loud noise and disturbing all the neighbours throughout the day and night.  We 
spent 2 weeks of sleepless nights until the generator was replaced which had a tremendously 
negative impact on our lives.  Despite this, the noise has not completely gone and we can still 
hear it from our bedrooms and gardens at night when there is less environmental noise.   

− We have spent months trying to convince the Council that it is our human right to live in peace 
in our own home but, as we were told it could only stay until 24th September 2014, we decided 
not to take any further action.  Its retention is unacceptable as it is noisy, ugly and upsetting 
and we have not been able to enjoy our garden all spring and summer.   

− These masts are never found in residential areas, only isolated sites.   

− I know that there are many residents in the surrounding area, including Thorpe Lea Gardens 
who want to see this mast removed and a petition has been signed to this effect.  What 
happened to Democracy? 

− These people have dodged the system enough.   

− If any permission is granted for this mast I will have no option but to call the press and get 
them involved as I do believe it is morally wrong to put a telecoms mast in a residential area, 
cause so much noise and nuisance to neighbours and have such large structures next to our 
gardens.   

− There is already a telecom mast attached to the building on the same property.   

− The games with withdrawal of application and re-application should be looked into by the 
Council Solicitors.   

 
In addition, a petition of 42 signatures against the proposal has been submitted.   
 
Stewart Jackson MP – I am very concerned about any application that seeks to extend temporary 
permission as I feel that it paves the way for permanent erection of such a mast.  It is clear that the 
noise is causing significant disruption to local residents, especially in the summer when the noise 
can be heard at its loudest.  I am also concerned about the streetview and the mast's appearance. 
 

21



 4 

5 Assessment of the planning issues 
 
The main considerations are:  

− Design and impact upon the character and appearance of the surrounding area  

− Impact upon neighbour amenity  

− Highway implications  

− Radiation and public health 
 
a) Background 

In 2012, all telecoms equipment sited on the roof of the former Peterborough District Hospital 
site was removed thereby resulting in a need to provide alternative sites within the locality to 
maintain coverage.  In June 2012, the Applicant erected a temporary 15 metre high mast 
within the hospital grounds through exercising the 'emergency' permitted development rights 
for electronic communications operators.  This expired on 6th December 2012.  A further 
extension was allowed informally by Officer to 31st January 2013 as a gesture of good will to 
allow the operator to implement a permanent replacement.  This permanent replacement was 
granted consent under application reference 11/01388/NTEL) is located to the east of the 
current application site, off Bourges Boulevard and in close proximity to the petrol filling 
station.  Owing to difficulties in connecting this replacement mast to the network, the Applicant 
requested a further extension of time to the 'emergency mast' for 12 months.  This was 
granted under application reference 13/00342/FUL with a requirement that the mast and all 
other supporting equipment be removed by 30th September 2013.   
 
The above temporary mast was actually removed on 18th August 2013 and resulted in no 
coverage within the area.  The permanent replacement site was connected, however it did not 
provide the extent of coverage that had been expected by the Applicant's advisors.  As such, 
there is a requirement to provide a further cell located to the west of the ‘coverage area’ 
(located around the former Hospital).  
 
In light of this and to maintain adequate network coverage, on 24th March 2014 the mast 
currently in situ on the application site was erected.  The 6-month 'emergency' permitted 
development period (whereby planning permission is not required) for this mast expired on 
24th September 2014 and therefore, its retention beyond this date is unauthorised.   
 
The current planning application seeks to regularise this retention and allow the mast to 
continue to be sited until 24th September 2015.   

 
b) Design and impact upon the character and appearance of the surrounding area  

The temporary telecoms mast is set to the rear-most extent of the application site and is well-
screened by the existing development which fronts on to the public highway.  As such, it is not 
readily visible from the public realm and it is not considered that it has any unacceptable level 
of impact in terms of the visual amenity of the streetscene along Thorpe Road.  However, it is 
acknowledged that the structure is visible from the surrounding residential properties given 
that it stands taller than the intervening trees and vegetation.  Given its relative height to these 
properties and proximity to the shared boundary, it does result in some degree of dominant 
and overbearing impact to occupants.   
 
Whilst the Applicant has requested permission be granted for the mast and its supporting 
structures to be retained until 24th September 2015, Officers consider that this is too long 
(particularly in light of the fact that it has already been in situ for 9 months) and would result in 
an unacceptably long period of visual impact for neighbouring residents.  Accordingly, Officers 
consider it appropriate to permit only a 6 month period of retention.  This would limit the time 
period of the visual impact to neighbouring residents whilst allowing a reasonable period for 
the Applicant to find an alternative site.   
 
Subject to this temporary 6-month period it is considered that the proposal would not result in 
an unacceptable level of impact to the character, appearance or visual amenity of the locality 

22



 5 

and is therefore in accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD 
(2011) and Policy PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).   

 
c) Noise impact upon neighbour amenity  

The telecoms mast and associated generator are located on land immediately adjacent to 
residential properties and it is noted that they have objected to its retention. Their objections 
are mainly in relation to the noise disturbance which was previously experience by a generator 
providing electricity to the mast.  This disturbance resulted in a noise nuisance complaint 
which was investigated by the City Council's Pollution Control Team.  As part of this 
investigation, the Applicant has taken measures to reduce the level of noise disturbance and 
the current application has been accompanied by a Noise Assessment.   
 
The Noise Assessment concludes that the fan to the generator which is now in situ (following 
replacement) does not result in any increase above background noise levels.  The Pollution 
Control Officer has visited the site and concurs with this view that the fan is no longer audible.  
However, in light of the previous complaints received, objections raised by local residents and 
to ensure that no unacceptable impact in terms of noise disturbance results, it is considered 
necessary to impose a restrictive noise condition.  It is proposed to secure a condition which 
requires that the noise from plant associated with the mast does not exceed 5dB LAeq, 1hour 
above background levels at any time.  This will ensure that should any complaints be received, 
the Local Planning Authority has recourse to take immediate action to rectify the matter. 
 
Subject to the imposition of this condition, it is considered that the retention of the mast would 
not result in any unacceptable impact to the amenities of neighbouring occupants, in 
accordance with paragraph 123 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2012), Policy 
CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP3 of the Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD (2012).   

 
d) Highway implications  

There is sufficient space within the application site for a service vehicle to pull clear of the 
public highway during periods of maintenance and commissioning to prevent any danger to 
highway users. On this basis, the scheme is in accordance with Policy CS14 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP12 of the Peterborough Planning 
Policies DPD (2012). 

 
e) Radiation and public health 

Paragraph 46 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2012) clearly states that 'Local 
Planning Authorities must determine applications on planning grounds.  They should not ... 
determine health safeguards if the proposal meets International Commission guidelines for 
public exposure'.  The application has been accompanied by a certificate confirming 
accordance with the International Commission on Non-Ionizing Radiation.  The proposal is 
therefore in accordance with national planning policy. 

 
f) Other matters 

In response to those objections raised by local residents not discussed above: 
 

Existing mast on the Thorpe Lodge Hotel building 
An appeal was determined in 2011 following action taken by the Council against the 
installation of a telecoms mast to the side of the building.  The Inspector concluded that the 
mast was 'permitted development' and therefore did not require the benefit of planning 
permission.   
 
Withdrawal of the earlier application 
An Applicant is entitled to withdraw any planning application and re-submit which is what has 
occurred in respect of this application.  The earlier application was withdrawn following 
discussion with Officers and a request for the submission of a Noise Assessment. 
 

23



 6 

Precedent 
The granting of an extension to a temporary permission does not set a precedent for the 
permanent erection of a mast on the site.  The current application does not request the 
permanent retention of the mast in situ and it cannot be considered on the basis of future 
development.  Any future planning applications (if submitted) will be determined on their own 
merits and be subject to further public consultation. 

 
6 Conclusions 
 
Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal is acceptable having been 
assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing against relevant policies of 
the development plan and specifically: 

− the retention of the mast and its supporting infrastructure would not result in any unacceptable 
level of harm to the character, appearance or visual amenity of the surrounding area, in 
accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP3 
of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012); 

− the plant associated with the telecoms mast would not result in any unacceptable level of 
disturbance and harm to the amenities of neighbouring occupants, in accordance with 
paragraph 123 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2012), Policy CS16 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP3 of the Peterborough Planning 
Policies DPD (2012); 

− the retention of the mast would not result in any unacceptable impact to the adjacent public 
highway, in accordance with Policy CS14 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and 
Policy PP12 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012); and 

− the application has been accompanied by a certificate confirming accordance with the 
International Commission on Non-Ionizing Radiation, in accordance with paragraph 43 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework (2012). 

 
7 Recommendation 
 
The Director of Growth and Regeneration recommends that Planning Permission is GRANTED 
subject to the following conditions: 
 
  
C 1 The mast and associated infrastructure shall be removed, and the land restored to its 

former condition, on or before 3rd August 2015.  
  
 Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area and neighbouring residents, in 

accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policies 
PP2 and PP3 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012). 

  
 
C 2 The noise from the mast and associated plant/infrastructure shall not exceed 5dB LAeq, 1hour 

above the background noise levels set out in the submitted 'Environmental Noise Impact 
Assessment of the Telecoms Mast at Thorpe Lodge Hotel, Peterborough' when measured 
at the nearest noise sensitive receptor.   

  
 In the event of any reasonable noise complaint being received by the Local Planning 

Authority, the Developer (or their successor's in Title) shall submit a further assessment to 
demonstrate compliance with the noise limits above within one month of written notice from 
the Local Planning Authority.  If the noise limits are found to be in exceedance, mitigation 
measures to ensure compliance shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority within an agreed timetable and implemented in full thereafter.   

  
 Reason:  In order to protect the amenities of neighbouring occupants, in accordance with 

paragraph 123 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2012), Policy CS16 of the 

24



 7 

Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP3 of the Peterborough Planning 
Policies DPD (2012). 

  
 

25



This page is intentionally left blank

26



27



This page is intentionally left blank

28



 1 

Planning and EP Committee 3 February 2015                                                                  Item 3 
 
Application Ref: 14/02166/OUT  
 
Proposal: Erection of 14 dwellings 
 
Site: Land To The South of Constantine Drive, Stanground South, 

Peterborough 
Applicant: Mr R Croft, Henry Davidson Developments 
Agent: Mr Tim Slater, 3D Planning Ltd. 
 
Referred by: Director of Growth and Regeneration  
Reason: Departure from the Local Plan  
 
Site visit: 22.01.2014 
 
Case officer: Miss Louise Lovegrove 
Telephone No. 01733 454439 
E-Mail: louise.lovegrove@peterborough.gov.uk 
 
Recommendation: GRANT subject to the signing of a LEGAL AGREEMENT and relevant 

conditions   
 

 
1 Description of the site and surroundings and Summary of the proposal 
 
Site and Surroundings  
The South Stanground Urban Extension (SSUE), known as Cardea, is located between Oakdale 
Avenue to the north and the Stanground Bypass to the south. The new Horsey Toll roundabout is 
situated to the east of the site and Peterborough Road to the west. There is a small length of dual 
carriageway heading off the new bypass into Cardea which is referred to as the Entrance Avenue. 
At the end of this avenue is a smaller roundabout leading to various development plots of the 
urban extension.  
 
The parcel of land subject to this application is situated to the northern-most extent of the allocated 
Local Centre.  This Local Centre has been partially developed through the construction of a large 
Morrisons retail store with car park, petrol filling station and a parade of 5 much smaller retail units.  
The Centre is situated off the principal route into the development, Apollo Avenue.  To the north of 
the application site is the St Michael's Primary School with a pedestrian footway running to the 
eastern boundary which links through to the Centre.   
 
For Members' information, a copy of the framework plan for the SSUE is attached as Appendix A. 
It should be noted that the application site is allocated through Policy SA9 as employment land and 
this has been approved under outline planning permission reference 03/00842/OUT, which granted 
permission for the urban extension.  
 
Proposal  
The application seeks outline planning permission for the construction of 14 residential dwellings.  
Approval for the access to the development is sought at this stage with matters of appearance, 
landscaping, layout and scale to be reserved.  It should be noted that the original description of 
development detailed that the dwellings were to be 3-beds however Officers, in agreement with the 
Applicant, have removed this element to allow for flexibility in terms of the mix of dwelling sizes.   
 
Given that the application site is allocated within the Local Plan as a Local Centre, the proposal for 
residential development represents a departure. 
 

29



 2 

2 Planning History 
 
03/00842/OUT Outline application for Urban Extension including 1525 

dwellings, school, local centre, 5.5ha of employment 
land, playing fields and other infrastructure. 

17/8/2001 Approved 

03/00507/FUL Stanground bypass 27/10/2005 Approved 

07/01651/REM Entrance avenue from bypass to the centre of the estate  30/5/2008 Approved 

07/01893/REM Western part of the spine road (which runs through the 
north-west quadrant of the site and will become the bus 
route) 

5/6/2008 Approved 

08/00870/REM 135 dwellings with roads, phase 1a/1b 9/6/2009 Approved 

08/01518/REM 115 dwellings with roads 7/4/2009 Approved 

10/00153/REM 48 dwellings with roads, phase 1c 3/6/2010 Approved 

10/00285/REM Green Infrastructure incorporating a sustainable drainage 
system (SUDS) relating to the western part of Cardea 

 Pending 

10/00146/REM 45 dwellings with roads 12/5/2010 Approved 

10/00483/REM Road to the south of the local centre 13/9/2010 Approved 

10/00484/REM Road to the north of the local centre 21/9/2010 Approved 

10/00524/REM Southern loop road (through the south-west quadrant of 
the site) 

26/7/2010 Approved 

10/00560/FUL New centre for Stanground South comprising foodstore 
(use class A1) including petrol filling station and recycling 
facility, public house/restaurant (use class A4), day 
nursery (use class D1), retail terrace (use class A1 
(restricted) A2, A3, A5, D1, B1a) together with associated 
car-parking, servicing and landscaping 

20/8/2010 Approved 

10/01027/REM Part of the sustainable drainage system to the east of the 
Local Centre and playing fields sites, serving the school, 
Local Centre, playing fields and housing phases 1f, 1i 
and 2c; and landscaping to the east of the Local Centre 

4/2/2011 Approved 

10/01619/REM 33 dwellings with roads phase 1e 18/1/2011 Approved 

10/01628/REM 48 dwellings with roads, replan of phase 1c 23/2/2011 Approved 

11/00467/REM 110 dwellings with roads, phases 2a/2b 9/09/2011 Permitted 

11/00487/FUL Construction of foot/cycleway to link Cardea with 
Oakdale Avenue, across the open space by Oakdale 
Primary School 

25/5/2011 Approved 

11/00778/REM Construction of 210 place C of E Primary School, 
including fenced games area, playing field and car 
parking 

19/08/2011 Permitted 

11/00961/REM Creation of playing fields, (incorporating a NEAP and a 
MUGA.) involving re-contouring of land, laying of 
drainage and landscaping - land South of the Local 
Centre 

23/09/2011 Permitted 

11/01952/REM Construction of electricity sub-station to serve new 
primary school as approved under planning permission 
03/00842/OUT 

1/02/2012 Permitted 

12/01252/REM Construction of 159 dwellings, access and landscaping 
on phases 3a-c 

19/02/2013 Permitted 

13/00969/R3F
UL 

Construction of new 3m wide shared-use 
footpath/cyclepath through open space buffer within 
Stanground South 

5/09/2013 Permitted 

13/01670/REM Substitution of housetypes to replace six approved 2/01/2014 Permitted 

30



 3 

dwellings on plots 227-232 of tranche 3a-c with three 
detached dwellings 

13/01712/REM Construction of 12 dwellings and associated landscaping 
- Phase 3ABC 

21/02/2014 Withdrawn 

13/01852/R3R
EM 

Proposed development of a sports pavilion with 
associated parking 

7/02/2014 Permitted 

14/01566/FUL Erection of 33 dwellings and the associated access 2/02/2014 Permitted 

14/01567/REM Reserved matters submitted pursuant to application 
03/00842/OUT - relating to access 

5/12/2014 Permitted 

14/01614/REM The erection of 45 dwellings and the associated works 10/12/2014 Permitted 

14/01668/REM Application for Reserved Matters for the construction of 
30 dwellings and associated works pursuant to planning 
permission 03/00842/OUT 

5/12/2014 Permitted  

 
 
3 Planning Policy 
 
Decisions must be taken in accordance with the development plan policies below, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (2012) 
 
Section 1 - Alternative uses for Allocated Employment Sites  
Where there is no reasonable prospect of an employment use being implemented applications for 
alternative uses should be considered, having regard to market signals and the need to support 
sustainable local communities. 
 
Section 6 - Change of Use of Employment Land to Residential  
Applications should normally be approved where there is an identified need for additional housing 
in that area and provided that there are not strong economic reasons why such development would 
be inappropriate. 
 
Section 7 - Good Design  
Development should add to the overall quality of the area; establish a strong sense of place; 
optimise the site potential; create and sustain an appropriate mix of uses; support local facilities 
and transport networks; respond to local character and history while not discouraging appropriate 
innovation; create safe and accessible environments which are visually attractive as a result of 
good architecture and appropriate landscaping. Planning permission should be refused for 
development of poor design. 
 
Section 8 - Safe and Accessible Environments  
Development should aim to promote mixed use developments, the creation of strong neighbouring 
centres and active frontages; provide safe and accessible environments with clear and legible 
pedestrian routes and high quality public space. 
 
Section 10 - Development and Flood Risk  
New development should be planned to avoid increased vulnerability to the impacts of climate 
change. Inappropriate development in areas of flood risk should be avoided by directing it away 
from areas at higher risk. Where development is necessary it shall be made safe without 
increasing flood risk elsewhere. Applications should be supported as appropriate by a site-specific 
Flood Risk Assessment, a Sequential Test and, if required, the Exception Test. 
 
Section 11 - Contamination  
The site should be suitable for its intended use taking account of ground conditions, land stability 
and pollution arising from previous uses and any proposals for mitigation. After remediation, as a 
minimum, land should not be capable of being determined as contaminated land under Part IIA of 

31



 4 

the Environmental Protection Act 1990. 
 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) 
 
CS01 - Settlement Hierarchy and the Countryside  
The location/ scale of new development should accord with the settlement hierarchy. Development 
in the countryside will be permitted only where key criteria are met. 
 
CS03 - Spatial Strategy for the Location of Employment Development  
Provision will be made for between 213 and 243 hectares of employment land from April 2007 to 
March 2026 in accordance with the broad distribution set out in the policy. 
 
CS08 - Meeting Housing Needs  
Promotes a mix of housing the provision of 30% affordable on sites of 15 of more dwellings (70% 
social rented and 30% intermediate housing), 20% life time homes and 2% wheelchair housing. 
 
CS10 - Environment Capital  
Development should make a clear contribution towards the Council’s aspiration to become 
Environment Capital of the UK. 
 
CS12 - Infrastructure  
Permission will only be granted where there is, or will be via mitigation measures, sufficient 
infrastructure capacity to support the impacts of the development. 
 
CS13 - Development Contributions to Infrastructure Provision  
Contributions should be secured in accordance with the Planning Obligations Implementation 
Scheme SPD (POIS). 
 
CS14 - Transport  
Promotes a reduction in the need to travel, sustainable transport, the Council’s UK Environment 
Capital aspirations and development which would improve the quality of environments for 
residents. 
 
CS15 - Retail 
Development should accord with the Retail Strategy which seeks to promote the City Centre and 
where appropriate the district and local centres. The loss of village shops will only be accepted 
subject to certain conditions being met. 
 
CS16 - Urban Design and the Public Realm  
Design should be of high quality, appropriate to the site and area, improve the public realm, 
address vulnerability to crime, be accessible to all users and not result in any unacceptable impact 
upon the amenities of neighbouring residents. 
 
CS17 - The Historic Environment  
Development should protect, conserve and enhance the historic environment including non-
scheduled nationally important features and buildings of local importance. 
 
CS19 - Open Space and Green Infrastructure  
New residential development should make provision for/improve public green space, sports and 
play facilities. Loss of open space will only be permitted if no deficiency would result. 
 
CS22 - Flood Risk  
Development in Flood Zones 2 and 3 will only be permitted if specific criteria are met. Sustainable 
drainage systems should be used where appropriate. 
 
 
 

32



 5 

Peterborough Site Allocations DPD (2012) 
 
SA09 - Urban Extensions  
Identifies sites for B1, B2 and B8 employment uses in accordance with Core Strategy policy CS3. 
 
Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012) 
 
PP02 - Design Quality  
Permission will only be granted for development which makes a positive contribution to the built 
and natural environment; does not have a detrimental effect on the character of the area; is 
sufficiently robust to withstand/adapt to climate change; and is designed for longevity. 
 
PP03 - Impacts of New Development  
Permission will not be granted for development which would result in an unacceptable loss of 
privacy, public and/or private green space or natural daylight; be overbearing or cause noise or 
other disturbance, odour or other pollution; fail to minimise opportunities for crime and disorder. 
 
PP04 - Amenity Provision in New Residential Development  
Proposals for new residential development should be designed and located to ensure that they 
provide for the needs of the future residents. 
 
PP12 - The Transport Implications of Development  
Permission will only be granted if appropriate provision has been made for safe access by all user 
groups and there would not be any unacceptable impact on the transportation network including 
highway safety. 
 
PP13 - Parking Standards  
Permission will only be granted if appropriate parking provision for all modes of transport is made 
in accordance with standards. 
 
PP16 - The Landscaping and Biodiversity Implications of Development  
Permission will only be granted for development which makes provision for the retention of trees 
and natural features which contribute significantly to the local landscape or biodiversity. 
 
PP17 - Heritage Assets  
Development which would affect a heritage asset will be required to preserve and enhance the 
significance of the asset or its setting.  Development which would have detrimental impact will be 
refused unless there are overriding public benefits. 
 
PP20 - Development on Land affected by Contamination  
Development must take into account the potential environmental impacts arising from the 
development itself and any former use of the site.  If it cannot be established that the site can be 
safely developed with no significant future impacts on users or ground/surface waters, permission 
will be refused. 
 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 
Paragraphs 203-205 of the National Planning Policy Framework: Planning Conditions and 
Obligations: 
 
Requests for planning obligations whether CIL is in place or not, are only lawful where they meet 
the following tests:- 

(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 
(b) directly related to the development; and  
(c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.  

 
In addition obligations should be: 

(i) relevant to planning; 

33



 6 

(ii) reasonable in all other respects. 
 
Planning permissions may not be bought or sold. Unacceptable development cannot be permitted 
because of benefits/inducements offered by a developer which are not necessary to make the 
development acceptable in planning terms. Neither can obligations be used purely as a means of 
securing for the local community a share in the profits of development. 
 
Peterborough Planning Obligations Implementation Scheme SPD (2010) 
 
 
4 Consultations/Representations 
 
Archaeological Officer (18.12.14) 
No objections - The site is located within the wider South Stanground Urban Extension which has 
been subject to a series of archaeological investigations between 2005 and 2007.  As such, no 
further work is deemed necessary. 
 
Building Control Manager  
No comments received. 
 
Education & Childrens Dept - Planning & Development  
No comments received. 
 
PCC Pollution Team (13.01.15) 
No objections - There may be an impact upon occupant amenity from fixed plant and deliveries 
which shall require appropriate mitigation.  If these noise sources are effectively controlled by 
condition, this Section would support a later detailed assessment of acoustic design to the current 
proposal. 
 
PCC Transport & Engineering Services (06.01.15) 
No objections - It is accepted that the proposal will generate less traffic than the nursery and health 
care building previously intended for the site. Request that revised drawings are submitted which 
accurately show the details and dimensions of the access.  A link through to the footpath which 
runs between the Local Centre and Constantine Drive should be provided. 
 
PCC Senior Recreation Officer  
No comments received. 
 
Section 106 Major Group  
No comments received. 
 
Police Architectural Liaison Officer (29.12.14) 
No objections - The indicative layout appears to be acceptable taking into account the constraints 
of the site. 
 
PCC Travel Choice  
No comments received. 
 
PCC Strategic Housing  
No comments received. 
 
Childcare Market Facilitation Manager (T Laws)  
No comments received. 
 
Cambridgeshire Fire & Rescue Service  
No comments received. 
 

34



 7 

PCC Drainage Team (31.12.14) 
No objections - Content that the proposal represents a lower quantity of impermeable area than the 
previous design and therefore, there should be adequate capacity within the wider drainage 
systems for the South Stanground Urban Extension.  Given that the details of the wider drainage 
have yet to be approved, request a condition relating to details of surface water drainage. 
 
Middle Level Commissioners  
No comments received. 
 
Waste Management  
No comments received. 
 
Local Residents/Interested Parties  
 
Initial consultations: 11 
Total number of responses: 3 
Total number of objections: 2 
Total number in support: 0 
 
Two objections have been received from the Chair of the Cardea Resident's Association and Head 
of St Michael’s Church School on the following grounds: 

− I foresee a parking problem.  The submitted drawings state that the dwelling entrances will be 
to the front but the car parking/driveways are to the rear and a far distance from the houses.  
We already have a road parking problem in Cardea whereby people do not park in their 
allocated bays (they will not walk 20 to 30 yards from their back gardens to their homes).  We 
will have the same problem of people parking along the street to the front of their houses as a 
result of this proposal.  As a Resident's Association, we feel that you need to look at this 
problem as we are already living with the nightmare. 

− Concern that residents would park their cars on the roadside adding to the congestion that 
already happens at school drop-off, pick-up times and lunchtime when the pre-school pick-
up/drop-off. 

− That an additional road/entrance off Constantine Drive into the development would add further 
road safety hazards for the children going to and coming from the school.   

− The construction period would create risk to the safety of the children as they come to and 
leave the school. 

 
5 Assessment of the planning issues 
 
The main considerations are:  

− Principle of development  

− Connections to other developments within the urban extension  

− Layout, design and amenity provision  

− Highway safety and parking  

− Contamination  

− Archaeology  

− Drainage  

− Developer contributions  
 
a) Principle of development  

The wider South Stanground Urban Extension (SSUE) was granted planning permission under 
application reference 03/00842/OUT in August 2007 for the construction of up to 1,525 
dwellings, 5.52 hectares of Class B1 employment land, a primary school, local centre and 
associated access roads, drainage and public open space.  
 
As detailed in Section 1 above, the application site forms part of the Local Centre, which is 
specifically identified through Policy SA1.3 of the Peterborough Site Allocations DPD (2012) 

35



 8 

and the planning permission for the urban extension.  In 2010, planning permission was 
granted for the development of the Local Centre in part (which has since been completed) and 
this comprises a mixture of a supermarket, public house and parade of 5 smaller local 
shops/facilities.  The current application site is partially covered by this planning permission as 
the north-western corner has planning permission for the construction of a children's day 
nursery (as shown at Appendix B).  The remainder of the site is presently reserved for the 
construction of a health centre and this is secured through Schedule 6 of the Section 106 legal 
agreement covering the urban extension.   
 
Turning first to the land reserved for the health centre, the provisions of the legal agreement 
state that upon notice being served on the City Council by the landowner (which was 
undertaken on 1st February 2010), the land must remain available for the Primary Care Trust 
(or such other similar body providing health care for the Peterborough Area) to enter into a 
contract for the construction of a health centre.  This requirement only remains in force for a 
period of 5 years - thereby running out on 1st February 2015.  To date, no party has come 
forward to take on the land and construct a health centre and in the period between the writing 
of this report and the Committee Meeting, it is not anticipated that any party shall come 
forward.  Confirmation of this will be provided to Members in the Briefing Update Report.   

 
In light of this, and in accordance with the provisions of the legal agreement, the land then 
reverts to be used for other agreed 'local centre uses' - retail units falling within Classes A1, A3 
and A5; public house; nursery for children of pre-school age; offices and other employment 
creating uses; adult social care accommodation; or community and spots pavilion.  Given this, 
it is considered that the site in its entirety is now allocated for these 'local centre uses' and not 
for any other purpose. 
 
It is acknowledged that the Local Centre is an important feature for the SSUE, providing the 
required services and facilities for its residents.  Accordingly, due consideration must be given 
to the level of provision of services/facilities and whether the loss of the remaining 
undeveloped allocation is acceptable.  For the main part, the Local Centre has been 
developed and the supermarket and small parade of units provides much of the services 
required.  There is a lack of pre-school provision within Cardea and the demand for such a 
facility is likely to increase through the development of the remaining eastern portion of the 
development (approximately a further 500 dwellings from those already constructed/granted 
planning permission).  However, a day nursery has already been granted planning permission 
on the site (through reference 10/00560/FUL for the Local Centre).  The Applicant has 
provided detailed evidence of the marketing of this nursery site and the health centre site for a 
period of 4 years which includes:  

• Large marketing boards erected at the roundabout fronting the A605 in 2012 and further 
boards fronting the development site itself in 2014; 

• A mailing campaign to: local, regional and national agents; retailers and restaurants; office 
occupiers; vets; 80 medical organisations; 70 gym operators; children's day nurseries; and 
care homes; and 

• Continual availability of the particulars on a commercial property website.   
 
During this period, which is throughout a time of economic difficulty, no party has come 
forward to take on the land (either through a freehold or leasehold arrangement) and it is 
considered that the submitted evidence demonstrates that there has been a lack of demand 
for operators to build such facilities over the past 4 years.  Whilst in the future demand may be 
generated for further 'local centre uses', it is Officers’ opinion that the site should not remain 
vacant and undeveloped for an indeterminate period of time.   
 
On this basis, it is considered that there is little demand or opportunity for the application site 
to be developed for its intended use in the short to medium-term and as such, the loss of this 
relatively small parcel for 'local centre uses' would not result in any significantly undue impact 
to the quality of services/facilities for local residents. 

 

36



 9 

b) Connections to other developments within the urban extension  
Cardea is a well-established development with occupancy of 667 dwellings as of August 2014 
(almost half of that approved at outline application stage). Furthermore, reserved matters 
consents and planning permissions for a further 108 dwellings. It has been identified that the 
wider development is one of the fastest selling in the country and annual dwelling completion 
rates are around the 100 figure which is considerable given the current economic climate. 
 
With regards to the application site, it is bound to the south by the developed area of the Local 
Centre and to the north by the Primary School.  To the east of the site is the undeveloped 
'Adult Social Care site' which has lawfully reverted back to be available for development for 
market housing.  To the west, is the principal road into the development and beyond, 
residential dwellings.  It is considered that appropriately designed residential development on 
the site would respect the character and built form of the locality without appearing 
incongruous or at odds with its surroundings.  Further, the proposal would be well-served by 
the existing services, facilities and public transport within the immediate locality.   
On this basis, the proposal is in accordance with Policies CS1 and CS16 of the Peterborough 
Core Strategy DPD (2011).   

 
c) Layout, design and amenity provision  
 

Layout and design 
The submitted Site Layout drawing is indicative only, as matters of layout, appearance and 
scale are proposed as reserved matters.  Broadly, it is considered that the proposed layout 
demonstrates that the number of dwellings proposed can readily be accommodated and that 
the density proposed is in accordance with the established built form within the wider SSUE.  
On this basis, the proposal is in accordance with paragraph 58 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework (2012), Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy 
PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).   
 
Amenity provision 
As above, it is considered that the proposed indicative layout demonstrates that the number of 
dwellings can be accommodated within the site and provide an acceptable level of amenity for 
future occupants.  The rear garden sizes would be of an adequate size to serve the dwellings 
and an appropriate layout could be achieved so as to prevent any unacceptable relationships 
in terms of overlooking, overshadowing and overbearing impact.   
 
The application has been accompanied by an Acoustic Assessment owing to the proximity of 
the site to the plant and machinery to the rear of the adjacent parade of retail units, the service 
yard and the car park serving the Local Centre.  The report does not detail any specific 
measures which should be implemented to ensure that no unacceptable impact results to 
occupants and details that further assessment, including mitigation measures shall be 
provided at a later date (prior to the commencement of development). 

 
The City Council's Pollution Control Officer has advised that the submitted information is 
adequate, however that further detailed assessment and mitigation where necessary shall be 
required.  There is potential for the fixed plant and night-time deliveries associated with the 
retail terrace to cause an unacceptable level of noise and nuisance to occupants of the 
proposed residential development and a review of the conditions imposed upon this terrace 
was requested.   
 
Condition C19 of planning permission reference 10/00580/FUL (for the Local Centre) states 
that no deliveries or activities within the yard area to the retail terrace shall take place outside 
the hours of 7am to 8pm Mondays to Saturdays and 9am to 4pm on Sundays and Bank 
Holidays.  In addition, condition C23 requires details of noise emitted from fixed plant to be 
submitted, along with requisite mitigation measures to control the level to within acceptable 
limits. 
 

37



 10 

With regards to noise from fixed plant, this condition has not been discharged in respect of the 
retail parade however its provisions are sufficient to ensure that any future plant to be installed 
would adequately address the relationship to the proposed dwellings to ensure that no 
unacceptable impact resulted.  Furthermore, it is considered appropriate to impose a condition 
which requires the submission of a more detailed assessment and any additional mitigation 
measures as a result of the current proposal.     
 
On this basis, it is considered that the proposal would afford an acceptable level of amenity for 
future occupants and is therefore in accordance with Policy PP4 of the Peterborough Planning 
Policies DPD (2012).   

 
d) Access and highway implications  

As detailed in Section 1 above, the application seeks approval for the vehicular access to the 
site.  This is proposed to be granted from Constantine Drive and would utilise an earlier 
approved access which was secured under Reserved Matters Consent for the road itself 
(reference 10/00484/REM).  The Local Highway Authority (LHA) has confirmed that the use of 
this access would be acceptable as it accords with the access approved in 2010.  It is 
proposed for this access road to be private and Officers will be seeking a gate to ensure that 
parents driving to the school and dropping off/picking up children will not use the access and 
driveway to park creating congestion problems and dangers to the free-flow of traffic on the 
highway.   
 
With regards to traffic generation, the LHA is content that the proposed residential use would 
generate less traffic using the access and public highway to the front of the school than the 
uses for which the site is allocated.  This shall result in fewer vehicles manoeuvring and using 
the highway and shall pose a lesser risk to pupils walking to the Primary School. 
 
It is noted that the Cardea Residents Association has objected to the proposal on the basis of 
the proposed indicative layout which shows that car parking would be provided to the rear of 
the dwellings, along the southern boundary.  Their concerns regarding the future parking on 
the highway to the front of the properties are noted however it is considered that the indicative 
layout demonstrates the best available arrangement for parking on the site.  By designing the 
proposal with parking to the rear of dwellings, it creates a buffer to the adjacent developed 
Local Centre which will provide a quieter level of amenity for future occupants within their 
gardens.  In addition, it should be noted that the car parking standards now applied have 
increased from those which were in force during the times at which earlier tranches of the 
Cardea development were approved.  The current scheme will be required to adhere to these 
increased standards and therefore, more parking should be provided to serve the dwellings.   
 
Furthermore, the LHA has advised that they would not support any further vehicular accesses 
onto Constantine Drive given that this would pose an unacceptable relationship to the 
pedestrians walking to/from the Primary School.  Whilst the exact parking arrangement is to be 
determined through Reserved Matters Consent, it is considered that appropriate and 
convenient parking would be afforded to future occupants and to meet adopted parking 
standards. 

 
On this basis, it is considered that safe access can be achieved and that the proposal would 
not pose an unacceptable danger to highway safety in accordance with Policy CS14 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policies PP12 and PP13 of the Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD (2012).   

 
e) Contamination  

As part of the original outline planning permission for the SSUE, the entire area subject to 
development was subject to an assessment of the contamination risks present.  This 
assessment highlighted that there was localised soil contamination by metals and 
hydrocarbons at Havelock Farm, Sycamore Lodge and generally throughout Glebe Farm 
however the application site does not fall within any of these areas.  Notwithstanding this, the 

38



 11 

report detailed a number of measures to be implemented in all areas in respect of ground gas.  
It is therefore considered necessary to impose a condition upon the current scheme which 
requires the submission of a contamination remediation scheme.  Subject to the imposition of 
this condition, the proposal would adequately address contamination risks on the site, in 
accordance with paragraph 121 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2012) and Policy 
PP20 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012).   

 
f) Archaeology  

As above, under the original outline planning permission the entire SSUE was subject to 
detailed archaeological evaluation. Initially by way of a series of trial trenches and geophysical 
surveys and then more detailed wider excavations. The initial trenches, some of which 
covered the application site, did not find any substantial archaeological remains within the 
area.  As such, the City Council's Archaeological Officer has confirmed that there is no 
requirement for further evaluation as the proposal does not pose any risk to buried 
archaeological remains. The proposal is therefore in accordance with paragraph 128 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework (2012), Policy CS17 of the Peterborough Core Strategy 
DPD (2011) and Policy PP17 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012). 

 
g) Drainage  

The City Council's Drainage Engineer has not raised any objections to the proposal in terms of 
surface water drainage as it has been concluded that the current proposal would not result in 
any increase in terms of impermeable surface from that which has already been 
permitted/planned.  Accordingly, it is considered that the sustainable drainage system 
(approved in outline) for the entire SSUE would have sufficient capacity to accommodate the 
proposed development.  Notwithstanding this, a condition would be required to secure details 
of the surface water drainage system.  On this basis, the proposal would not pose an 
unacceptable risk of flooding elsewhere and is therefore in accordance with Policy CS22 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011).   

 
h) Developer contributions 

In accordance with Policy CS12 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011), all new 
development is required to make a financial contribution towards the infrastructure demands it 
generates.  At present, the contributions are calculated in accordance with the Peterborough 
Planning Obligations Implementation Scheme SPD (2010) which bases the calculations on the 
size of dwelling as follows: 
 

1 Bedroom  £3,000 
2 Bedroom  £4,000 
3 Bedroom  £6,000 
4 Bedroom  £8,000 
5+ Bedroom  £9,000 

 
The Applicant has agreed to enter into a legal agreement to secure the above contribution and 
the legal process is presently ongoing.   
 
With regards to affordable housing, the policy trigger set out in Policy CS8 of the Peterborough 
Core Strategy DPD (2011) is 15 dwellings or more.  As the proposal is for less than this 
trigger, no affordable housing is required.   
 
However, the proposal does exceed the trigger for the provision of public open space.  Given 
the size of the development, there is no requirement for this to be provided within the site and 
therefore, consideration should be given to upgrading public open space within the 
surrounding area.  Within the SSUE, the public open spaces have been planned to meet the 
needs of the originally approved 1525 and the existing play area off Oakdale Avenue has been 
upgraded to meet the additional demands resulting from this development.  It is not considered 
that the proposed additional 14 dwellings would generate any substantial additional demand 
for open space within the SSUE and there are no upgrades which could be made given the 

39



 12 

age of the open space in situ.  As such, in this instance it is not proposed to seek any off-site 
public open space contribution. 

 
6 Conclusions 
 
Subject to the imposition of the attached conditions, the proposal is acceptable having been 
assessed in the light of all material considerations, including weighing against relevant policies of 
the development plan and specifically: 

− whilst the proposal would result in the loss of a portion of the allocated Local Centre, it is not 
considered that the loss of the land would result in any unacceptable impact to the provision of 
services and facilities of residents of the Urban Extension; 

− the application site is considered an appropriate location for residential development which 
would provide good connections to the wider South Stanground Urban Extension, in 
accordance with Policies CS1 and CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011); 

− the overall density of the proposal would mirror the existing wider development of Cardea, in 
accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP2 
of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012); 

− the proposal would afford an acceptable level of amenity for future occupants, in accordance 
with Policy PP4 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012); 

− the proposal would provide safe access for all users, in accordance with Policy CS14 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP12 of the Peterborough Planning 
Policies DPD (2012); 

− subject to appropriate remediation, the site would not pose any unacceptable risk to human 
health, in accordance with paragraph 121 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2012) 
and Policy PP20 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012); 

− the site has already been subject to archaeological evaluation and it is considered that there is 
little potential for undiscovered remains, in accordance with paragraph 128 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework (2012), Policy CS17 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD 
(2011) and Policy PP17 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012); 

− the proposal would not result in unacceptable flood risk elsewhere, in accordance with Policy 
CS22 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011); and 

− the Applicant has agreed to enter into a Section 106 legal agreement to secure a financial 
contribution towards the infrastructure demands generated by the proposal, in accordance with 
Policies CS12 and CS13 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and the 
Peterborough Planning Obligations Implementation Scheme SPD (2010). 

 
7 Recommendation 
 
The Director of Growth and Regeneration recommends that Outline Planning Permission is 
GRANTED subject to the signing of a LEGAL AGREEMENT and the following conditions: 
 
If the required Section 106 legal agreement is not completed within a reasonable period, then the 
Committee delegates the issuing of a notice of refusal to the Director of Growth and Regeneration 
on the grounds that the development has failed to adequately mitigate its impacts. 
 
Should the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule come into force prior to the 
completion of the Section 106 legal agreement, the development may be wholly liable to the CIL or 
the S106 legal agreement may be amended to exclude those items that could be funded by the 
CIL. Items that could be funded by the CIL will be listed on the Council’s Regulation 123 List in 
accordance with Regulation 123 of the CIL Regulations 2010. 
 
A Regulation 123 List will be adopted by the Council on the same day as the Council’s CIL 
Charging Schedule. Currently, a Draft Regulation 123 List can be viewed on the CIL pages of the 
Council’s website. 
 
 

40



 13 

C 1 Approval of details of the appearance, landscaping, layout and scale (hereinafter called 'the 
reserved matters') shall be obtained from the Local Planning Authority in writing before any 
development is commenced. 

  
 Reason: To ensure that the development meets the policy standards required by the 

development plan and any other material considerations including national and local policy 
guidance. 

  
 
C 2 Plans and particulars of the reserved matters referred to in condition 1 above, relating to 

the appearance, landscaping, layout and scale shall be submitted in writing to the Local 
Planning Authority and shall be carried out as approved. 

  
 Reason: To ensure that the development meets the policy standards required by the 

development plan and any other material considerations including national and local policy 
guidance. 

  
 
C 3 Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning 

Authority before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
  
 Reason: In accordance with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning 

Act 1990 (as amended). 
  
 
C 4 The development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the expiration of five years 

from the date of this permission or before the expiration of two years from the date of 
approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved, whichever is the later. 

  
 Reason: In accordance with the provisions of Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning 

Act 1990 (as amended). 
  
 
C 5 The details to be submitted under condition 1 above shall include details of the following 

external materials: 
- Walling and roofing 
- Windows and doors 
- Rainwater goods 
- Cills and lintels 
- Soil flues and vents 

    
 The details submitted for approval shall include the name of the manufacturer, the product 

type, colour (using BS4800) and reference number.  The development shall not be carried 
out except in accordance with the approved details.   

    
 Reason:  For the Local Planning Authority to ensure a satisfactory external appearance, in 

accordance with Policy CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy 
PP2 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012). 

  
 
C 6 The details submitted under condition 1 above shall include a scheme for the hard and soft 

landscaping of the site. The scheme shall include (but not limited to): 
 

- proposed finished ground and building slab levels;  
- external paving and surfacing materials; 
- all boundary treatments; 
- external lighting 

41



 14 

- planting plans for public areas including retained trees, species, numbers, size and 
density of planting; and 

- an implementation programme. 
  
 Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  The soft 

landscaping scheme shall be carried out as approved no later than the first planting season 
following the occupation of any building or the completion of development, whichever is the 
earlier and the external paving, boundary treatments and external lighting shall be carried 
out as approved prior to first occupation of the dwelling to which they relate.   

 
Lighting shall be arranged so that no danger or inconvenience is caused to users of the 
adjoining public highway.   

    
 Reason:  In the interests of the visual appearance of the development and the 

enhancement of biodiversity in accordance with Policy CS21 of the Peterborough Core 
Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP16 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012). 

 
 
C 7 Any trees, shrubs or hedges forming part of the approved landscaping scheme (except 

those contained in enclosed rear gardens to individual dwellings) that die, are removed or 
become diseased within five years of the implementation of the landscaping scheme shall 
be replaced during the next available planting season by the developers, or their 
successors in title with an equivalent size, number and species to those being replaced.  
Any replacement trees, shrubs or hedgerows dying within five years of planting shall 
themselves be replaced with an equivalent size, number and species. 

    
 Reason: In the interests of the visual appearance of the development and the enhancement 

of biodiversity in accordance with Policy CS21 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD 
(2011) and Policy PP14 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012). 

  
 
C 8 Prior to the commencement of development, a Construction Management Plan (CMP) shall 

be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The CMP to be 
submitted shall include (but not necessarily limited to): 
- Hours of construction; 
- Access routes for construction vehicles; 
- Parking, turning, loading and unloading areas for all construction vehicles visiting the 

site; 
- Parking of contractor vehicles; 
- Materials storage; 
- Wheel wash facilities; and 
- Measures to control the emission of dust from the site.  

   
 Reason:  In the interest of highway safety and the amenity of nearby residential properties, 

in accordance with Policies CS14 and CS16 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD 
(2011) and Policies PP3 and PP12 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012). 

  
 
C 9 No dwelling shall be occupied until the means of vehicular access shown on drawing 

number 1136-004 ‘Approved Access Drawing with Proposed Layout Overlay’ has been 
constructed in accordance with the details shown.   

   
 Reason:  In interests of highway safety, in accordance with Policy CS14 of the 

Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP12 of the Peterborough Planning 
Policies DPD (2012). 

  
 

42



 15 

C 10 The vehicle-to-vehicle visibility splays shown on drawing number 1136-004 ‘Approved 
Access Drawing with Proposed Layout Overlay’ at the junction of the access road with the 
public highway shall be provided prior to first use of the vehicular access.  Thereafter, those 
splays shall be retained clear of any obstruction above a height of 600mm from footway 
level.   

  
Reason:  In interests of highway safety, in accordance with Policy CS14 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP12 of the Peterborough Planning 
Policies DPD (2012). 

 
 
C 11 Notwithstanding the submitted details and prior to first use of the vehicular access hereby 

permitted, vehicle-to-pedestrian visibility splays measuring 2 metres x 2 metres (from and 
along the back edge of the public highway) shall be provided to both sides of the access.  
Thereafter, those splays shall be retained clear of any obstruction above a height of 600mm 
from footway level.   

  
Reason:  In interests of highway safety, in accordance with Policy CS14 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP12 of the Peterborough Planning 
Policies DPD (2012). 

 
 
C 12 The details submitted under condition 1 above shall include areas for parking, turning and 

manoeuvring of vehicles in connection with the use of the dwellings, including surfacing 
materials and measures for demarcation of spaces.  Notwithstanding the details shown on 
the submitted drawings, the access driveway shall be of a minimum width of 5.5 metres for 
a distance of 10 metres from the back edge of the public highway and 5 metres in width 
thereafter.   

 
The dwellings shall not be occupied until those areas are provided in accordance with the 
approved details.  Thereafter, those areas shall not be used for any purpose other than the 
parking and turning of vehicles in connection with the use of the dwelling to which they 
relate. 

   
 Reason:  In the interests of highway safety, in accordance with Policy CS14 of the 

Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policies PP12 and PP13 of the Peterborough 
Planning Policies DPD (2012). 

 
 
C 13 The existing unauthorised eastern access to Constantine Drive shall be permanently closed 

to vehicular traffic before occupation of the dwellings.  Details of the means of closure shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before 
development is commenced. 

 
Reason:  In the interests of highway safety, in accordance with Policy CS14 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP12 of the Peterborough Planning 
Policies DPD (2012). 

 
 
C 14 Notwithstanding the vehicular access details hereby permitted and prior to first occupation 

of any dwelling, the vehicular access shall be gated in accordance with details submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Thereafter, the vehicular access 
shall remain gated at all times.    

 
Reason:  In the interests of highway safety, in accordance with Policy CS14 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011) and Policy PP12 of the Peterborough Planning 
Policies DPD (2012). 

43



 16 

 
  
 
C 15 Prior to the commencement of development, full and up-to-date design details of the 

proposed surface water drainage system to serve the development shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved surface water 
drainage scheme shall be constructed and completed prior to first occupation of any 
dwelling.   

   
 Reason:  To ensure that the dwellings approved are not at unacceptable risk from flooding, 

in accordance with Policy CS22 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011). 
  
 
C 16 Prior to the commencement of development, full details of a scheme (including phasing) for 

the provision of mains foul water drainage on- and off-site shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details and no dwelling shall be occupied until the works 
have been carried out in accordance with the approved scheme.   

  
 Reason:  To prevent flooding, pollution and detriment to public amenity through the 

provision of sustainable water infrastructure, in accordance with Policy CS22 of the 
Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011).   

  
 
C 17 The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until details of a 

comprehensive contaminated land investigation has been submitted to and approved by 
the Local Planning Authority and until the scope of works approved therein have been 
implemented where possible. The assessment shall include all of the following measures 
unless the Local Planning Authority dispenses with any such requirements in writing: 

  
a) A Phase I desk study carried out by a competent person to identify and evaluate all 

potential sources of contamination and the impacts on land and/or controlled waters, 
relevant to the site. The desk study shall establish a 'conceptual model' of the site and 
identify all plausible pollutant linkages. Furthermore, the assessment shall set 
objectives for intrusive site investigation works/Quantitative Risk Assessment (or state if 
none required). Two full copies of the desk study and a non-technical summary shall be 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority without delay upon completion. 

 
b) A site investigation shall be carried out to fully and effectively characterise the nature 

and extent of any land contamination and/or pollution of controlled waters. It shall 
specifically include a risk assessment that adopts the Source-Pathway-Receptor 
principle and takes into account the site's existing status and proposed new use. Two 
full copies of the site investigation and findings shall be forwarded to the Local Planning 
Authority. 

  
 Where the risk assessment identifies any unacceptable risk or risks, an appraisal of 

remedial options and proposal of the preferred option to deal with land contamination 
and/or pollution of controlled waters affecting the site shall be submitted to and approved by 
the Local Planning Authority. No works, other than investigative works, shall be carried out 
on the site prior to receipt and written approval of the preferred remedial option by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The remediation scheme shall be carried out as approved and in 
accordance with a timetable contained therein.  

  
 On completion of remediation, two copies of a closure report shall be submitted to the Local 

Planning Authority. The report shall provide verification that the required works regarding 
contamination have been carried out in accordance with the approved Method 

44



 17 

Statement(s). Post remediation sampling and monitoring results shall be included in the 
closure report. 

  
 Reason: To ensure potential risks arising from previous site uses have been fully assessed 

in accordance with paragraphs 120 and 121 of the National Planning Policy Framework and 
Policy PP20 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012). 

  
 
C 18 If, during development, contamination not previously considered is identified, then the Local 

Planning Authority shall be notified immediately and no further work shall be carried out 
until a method statement detailing a scheme for dealing with the suspect contamination has 
been submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.  The 
development shall thereafter not be carried out except in complete accordance with the 
approved scheme. 

  
 Reason: To ensure potential risks arising from previous site uses have been fully assessed 

in accordance with paragraphs 120 and 121 of the National Planning Policy Framework and 
Policy PP20 of the Peterborough Planning Policies DPD (2012). 

  
 
C 19 The development hereby approved shall be constructed so that it achieves at least a 10% 

improvement on the Target Emission Rates set by the Building Regulations at the time of 
Building Regulations being approved for the development. 

   
 Reason: To accord with Policy CS10 of the Peterborough Core Strategy DPD (2011). 
  
 

45



This page is intentionally left blank

46



APPENDIX A

47



This page is intentionally left blank

48



APPENDIX B

49



This page is intentionally left blank

50


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Meeting Held on 6 January 2015
	5.1 14/01393/FUL - Unit B, Vision House, Fengate, Peterborough
	14-01390-FUL Vision House
	14-01390-FUL Appendix A Vision House

	5.2 14/02110/FUL - 83 Thorpe Road, Peterborough, PE3 6JQ
	14-02110-FUL 83 Thorpe Road

	5.3 14/02166/OUT - Land to the South of Constantine Drive, Stanground South, Peterborough
	14-02166-OUT Land to the South of Constantine Drive
	14-02166-OUT Appendix A Land to the South of Constantine Drive
	14-02166-OUT Appendix B Land to the South of Constantine Drive




